ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 28, 2017
5:30 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Tom Begi ch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Gary Stevens

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
REPRESENTATI VE DANI EL ORTI Z
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 87

"An Act relating to energy efficiency standards and standardi zed
options for building and equipnment conponents for schoo

construction and major mai nt enance; relating to school
construction and rmajor nmintenance grants and bond debt
rei mbur senent; est abl i shing a wor ki ng gr oup to make

recommendations relating to energy efficiency and standardized
conmponents in schools; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 87(EDC) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 96

"An Act relating to education; relating to school districts;
relating to course credit for students; relating to group
i nsurance, self-insurance, and other cooperative arrangenents
bet ween school districts and busi nesses, nonprofi t
organi zati ons, and governnent agencies; relating to funding for
school districts; relating to school operating funds; relating
to conpetency exam nations for teacher certificates; relating to
the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion; relating to the
duties and powers of the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent and the conmi ssioner of education and early
devel opnent ; relating to a wvirtual education consortium

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2017



relating to the mninmum wage for bus drivers; relating to the
i nvestnent, appropriation, and admnistration of the public
school trust fund; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 87

SHORT TI TLE: SCHOOL CONSTRUCTI ON ENERGY EFFI Cl ENCY STD
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MACKI NNON

03/ 10/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 10/ 17 (S) EDC, FIN

03/ 22/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 22/ 17 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 22/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 24/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 17 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 24/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 27/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 27/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 28/ 17 (S) EDC AT 5: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 96

SHORT TI TLE: EDUCATI ON: SCHOOLS/ TEACHERS/ FUNDI NG
SPONSOR(s) : EDUCATI ON

03/ 20/ 17 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 20/ 17 (S EDC, FIN

03/ 22/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 22/ 17 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 22/ 17 (S M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 23/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 23/ 17 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 23/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 24/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 17 (S <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 27/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 27/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 17 (S M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 28/ 17 (S) EDC AT 5: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

JOSHUA BANKS, St aff

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2017



Senat or Shel | ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained the three changes in version U

CASS POOK, President

Sitka School Board

Sitka, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

BEN WHI TE, Pri nci pal

Bl atchl ey M ddl e School

Sitka, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

DEENA BI SHOP, Superi nt endent

Anchor age School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

STARR MARSETT, Menber

Anchor age School Board

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

JI M ANDERSON, Chief Financial Oficer

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

M KE HANLEY, Superi ntendent

Chugach School District

For mer Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to parts of SB 96.

DEENA M TCHELL, Menber

Great Al aska School s

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 96.

DAVE JONES, Assistant Superintendent

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against the proposed changes to
t he school size factor adjustnent in SB 96.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2017



JACK WALSH, Superi nt endent

Craig School District

Crai g, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
ROBERT BOYLE, Superi ntendent

Gat eway Borough School District
Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

SHAWN ARNOLD, Superi ntendent

None Public School s

None, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

ROB PI CQU, Superi ntendent

Lower Yukon School District

Mountain Village, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

PAUL KENDALL, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

SCOTT MACMANUS, Superi nt endent

Al aska Gateway School District

Tok, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

TRACI E WEI SZ, Director

Curriculumand I nstruction

Al aska Gateway School District

Tok, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

LI SA CONRAD, Chair

Al aska Gat eway Regi onal School Board

Tok, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

BARB JEVELL, Chair

Cordova Board of Education

Cordova, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

PETE HOEPFNER, Menber
Cordova Board of Education

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4-

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

to

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

96

96.

96.

96.

96.

96.

96.

96.

96.

March 28, 2017



Pr esi dent

Al aska Associ ation of School Boards

Cordova, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

PATRI CK MAYER, Superi nt endent

W angel | Public School s

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositions to Sections 10 and
11 in SB 96

AMY LUJAN, Executive Director

Al aska Associ ation of School Business Oficials
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

CLAY KOPLIN, Mayor
Cordova, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 96.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

5:30:18 PM

CHAIR SHELLEY HUGHES <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 5:30 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Begich, Gessel, Coghill, and Chair Hughes.
Senat or Stevens was excused.

SB 87- SCHOOL CONSTRUCTI ON _ENERGY EFFI CI ENCY _STD

CHAlI R HUGHES announced the consideration of SB 87. She said the
coommittee would adopt the new CS and nove the bill out of
comm ttee.

5:31: 19 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to adopt the CS for SB 87, |abeled
LS0535\U, as the working docunent.

CHAI R HUGHES obj ect ed for discussion.

JOSHUA BANKS, Staff, Senator Shelley Hughes, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained the three changes in version U

Page 9, Lines 12-13: Adds a nmenber from the
construction industry with expertise in rural areas.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2017



Page 9, Line 14: Adds a nenber from the architecture
and design industry.

Page 10, Line 19: Changes the recommendation to have
designs for buildings wth a 30-year life, to designs
for buildings wwth a 50-year life.

5:32:41 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked for clarification on page 9. She wondered
if there are now three nenbers fromthe construction industry in
t he wor ki ng group.

MR. BANKS sai d yes.

CHAI R HUGHES renoved her objection and asked the wll of the
conmittee.

5:33:21 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report the CS for SB 87, version 30-
LS0535\U, from commttee wth individual recomendations and
attached fiscal notes.

CHAIR HUGHES stated that seeing no objection, CSSB 87(EDC) is
noved from comittee.

5:33: 53 PM
At ease

SB 96- EDUCATI ON:  SCHOOLS/ TEACHERS/ FUNDI NG

5:35:19 PM
CHAI R HUGHES announced the consi derati on of SB 96.

5:35:47 PM
CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinmny on SB 96.

CHAI R HUGHES not ed the presence of Representative Otiz.

CHAIR HUGHES encouraged those not able to testify today to
subnmit conmments to senate.educati on@kleg.gov and they wll be
distributed to nenbers. She commented that it has been a
pl easure to work with so many stakeholders and the nenbers of
the conmttee to make various changes to the bill. She noted
there may be concern about the school size adjustnent, but the
commttee is currently at step one in the process. Al so, she
said the fiscal note represents the worst case scenario - |if
districts were to do nothing. Sone districts mght not be

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2017



impacted at all. She said the conmttee is working on another CS
and she appreciates the input. It is a joint effort.

She pointed out that this hearing on version T of SB 96 does not
relate to any action of a Finance Conmittee.

5:37:18 PM

CASS PO, Presi dent, Sitka School Boar d, testified in
opposition to SB 96. She related the problens SB 96 woul d cause
the 20 districts. Sitka School District's enrollnment does not
support SB 96. She stated that consolidation of schools and
cl ass-size increase would hurt the district. She did not think
st akehol ders supportive of education would support this bill.
Educati on decisions should be up to local control, not state
cont rol

5:40: 31 PM
BEN VWHI TE, Principal, Blatchley Mddle School, testified in
opposition to SB 96. He thanked the nmenbers of the commttee for

their service. He said the bill would cut about $68 mllion from
20 districts, and Sitka, alone, would lose $4.1 mllion. He
mai ntained that the bill was not done with stakehol der input. He
said decisions should be nmade at the local Ilevel. He had

concerns about security and privacy. He was opposed to
consolidation of schools and nmaintained it would not save noney.
Section 16 is a dramatic shift away from Sitka's goals. He urged
the conmttee to consider Alaska's children first.

CHAI R HUGHES said she appreciates his information and they are
still working on sections of the bill.

5:43:56 PM

DEENA BI SHOP, Superintendent, Anchorage School District (ASD),
testified in opposition to SB 96. She found issue with the
provisions of the bill which place Al aska students at the bottom
of priorities. The changes proposed to the 80 percent capacity
provi sion and subsequent decrease in funding inequitably,
penalize the educational goals  of Anchorage and ot her
communities. ASD cal culates an additional loss of $15 million in
revenue due to the bill, given that it would not qualify for
hol d harml ess. The decision to inpact a small portion of the BSA
formula, increases or inpacts other areas of revenues. A 5
percent reduction of statew de funding over the next three years
is proposed, yet only 20 of 53 school districts may be affected
by this plan.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2017



She said while SB 96 does include innovative thinking wth
regard to instruction, it does not protect Alaska's future. ASD
is already reducing over 100 full-tine enployees next year wth
the nost coming fromadm nistration

5:46: 30 PM

STARR MARSETT, Menber, Anchorage School Board, testified in
opposition to SB 96. She described problenms that SB 96 wll
cause their district, including requiring higher Praxis scores
to weed out bad teachers. Alaska has unique teacher recruitnment
i ssues, a poor retirenent plan, and teacher shortage. She said
the plan to cut education 5 percent is not clear. She urged
Al askans to encourage the |egislature to not cut education.

5:49: 02 PM

JIM  ANDERSOQN, Chi ef Fi nanci al Oficer, Anchorage  School
District, testified in opposition to SB 96. He stated that
Anchorage cannot survive nore cuts to education. He addressed
problenms with proposed cuts to the foundation fornula and their
effect on the local contribution. The hold harm ess provision in
the foundation fornmula only applies to districts that haven't
had a 5 percent reduction to the ADM Anchorage and many other
districts don't fit the current definition and wll have
uni nt ended consequences. He thanked the conmittee for their
servi ce.

CHAI R HUGHES encour aged people to provide witten testinony.

5:51:26 PM
M KE HANLEY, Superintendent, Chugach School District (CSD)
For mer Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of Education and Early

Devel opnent (DEED), testified in opposition to parts of SB 96.
He addressed Section 5, the reporting of the nunber of
adm ni strators, and explained why it would not work when funding
certain grants due to adm nistrator requirenents. He suggested
to put "state funded” in front of those administrators so the
count woul d recogni ze accountability, but not be a disincentive
to receiving grants.

He spoke to Sections 10 and 11 which would not affect CSD,

however, the <consolidation of schools based on occupancy
percentage will not work in mny instances. He provided an
exanpl e.

5:53:59 PM

DEENA M TCHELL, Menber, G eat Al aska Schools, testified on SB
96. She found sone things she likes in the bill, but also some

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2017



i ssues that need work. There is not much in the bill that would
help schools address their fiscal gap, having already nade
severe cuts. She suggested listening to rural districts about
how their adm nistrators are serving students.

She addressed teacher quality provi si ons and  suggested

consideration of all factors. She referred to an audit in
Anchorage that suggested ideas for inprovenent, but noted that
resources would be required to do so. She hoped the bill would

address sone of the areas of Best Practices.

She voiced concern that the bill is very heavy on secondary
| earni ng, but contains nothing on early |earning, where dollars
are best spent. She spoke of the harm of a potential 5 percent
reduction on top of the reductions from not inflation-proofing
t he BSA.

5:56: 56 PM

DAVE JONES, Assistant Superintendent, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, testified against the proposed changes to the
school size factor adjustnent in SB 96. He thanked the
| egislature for previously funding K-12 education as a priority
in Alaska. He provided the history of the school size factor
adjustnment and all the favorable reviews it has had. He voiced
concern about SB 36, which uses a capacity formula to adjust the
foundation fornmula which has known weaknesses. Any adjustnents
to the foundation funding need to be based on enpirical data
derived from studies. SB 96 reduces funding of buildings below
80 percent capacity and within 25 mles of each other. This is
arbitrary and does not provide a sound basis for funding
education. He urged the commttee not to take action to change
t he school size factor adjustnent.

5:59:48 PM

JACK WALSH, Superintendent, Craig School District, testified in
opposition to SB 96. He spoke of his history in rural Al aska
with bills such as this one. He voiced concern about the unsound
met hods of determining the foundation formula funding. The
process of consolidation of schools is also a concern. He spoke
of how the district uses virtual learning in the state and
locally. He said he is concerned with the process this bill is
going through. He appreciated the commttee's work to try to
find solutions.

6: 01: 51 PM

ROBERT BOYLE, Superintendent, Gateway Borough School District,
testified in opposition to SB 96. He described what the bil

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- March 28, 2017



would do to his district. The 80 percent occupancy provision is
highly intrusive and counterproductive. The bill is a
m cr omanagenent mandate for schools and creates a Senate PTR It
does not reflect quality education in Ketchikan. He pointed out
that DEED determ ned the size of the school buildings currently
in place and the bill penalizes the district because they
mai nt ai ned those schools. The bill is a brutal intrusion into
| ocal control and limts the district's ability to use research-
based prograns.

6: 04: 24 PM
SHAWN ARNOLD, Superintendent, Nonme Public Schools, testified in
opposition to SB 96. He focused on Section 11 of the bill. He

described how that section would play out in None where there
are two buildings, None Elenentary School at 74 percent capacity
and Nonme Jr./Sr. High at 14 percent. He related how they could
transfer the Jr./Sr. Hgh to the Elenentary School to save
noney, but it is not the right decision for their district. He
descri bed what would result - no noney would be saved and it
would cost to add nodulars to the existing school. He pointed
out that they already meke better wuse of the Jr./Sr. High
capacity by bringing in the Northwestern Al aska Career and
Techni cal Center (NACTE) program where students from ot her areas
use their learning space. None of this is factored into the
formul a.

6:07: 25 PM

ROB Pl CQU, Superi nt endent Lower Yukon  School District,
testified in opposition to SB 96. He suggested that sone
elements of the bill could lead to cost savings, but others
could have wunintended consequences. In light of past and
proposed cuts, the district has already taken neans to save
nmoney and he listed them The |anguage regarding school size
adjustment in SB 96 would result in another $1.5 nillion
reduction, and an additional 5 percent cut would bring their
structural deficit to about $4.7 mllion. He said virtual
education is not transformative in their district wthout
i ncreased broadband and staff devel opnment and an enphasis on the
i nportance of the teacher.

He concluded that the district is not oblivious to the financial
crisis, nor to their responsibilities to help reduce
expenditures. They are aware of what is needed in education to
transform education in rural Alaska. They are leaning into the
chal l enge of reduced revenue and working with regional partners
to transform education. He urged the legislature to give careful

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- March 28, 2017



consideration to unintended consequences of |egislation that may
harm chi | dren

6:11:18 PM

PAUL KENDALL, representing hinself, testified in opposition to
SB 96. He did not approve of wusing children for political
pur poses.

6:13: 44 PM

SCOTT MACMANUS, Superintendent, Al aska Gateway School District,
testified in opposition to SB 96. He applauded the |egislature
for their efforts. He |iked seeing support for virtual and
di stance education and the enphasis on having good teachers. He
di scussed Section 5, which attenpts to elimnate adm nistration,
but instead increases the work for adm nistrators. There needs
to be language that differentiates between general revenues and
speci al revenues |ike grant funds, especially in small schools.
He mai ntained that the fiscal note related to Sections 10 and 11
is based on flawed information. Many schools will be inpacted by
this and the capacity fornula provision.

6:16: 09 PM

TRACIE WEISZ, Director, Curriculum and Instruction, Al aska
Gateway School District, testified in opposition to SB 96. She
t hanked the commttee for hearing her testinony and said she was
glad to see the inclusion of virtual and distance education in
the bill. Mny districts already have their own digital and
virtual learning initiatives and have cooperative agreenents to
share these services. She took issue with Section 5 and noted
that it is not at all unusual for small districts to have the
appearance of being top heavy. The admnistrators have multiple
duties and al ready provide cost savings.

She addressed detrimental cuts as a result of Sections 10 and
11.

6:18: 33 PM

LI SA CONRAD, Chair, Alaska Gateway Regional School Board,
testified in opposition to SB 96. She said she is opposed to
Sections 10 and 11, which would cut $1.7 mllion from the
district. She would like to see nore work done on attracting and
keeping quality teachers. She provided exanples of teacher
shortages. She spoke in support of the Alaska Education
Chal | enge and suggested the committee work together and not pass
SB 96 until the issues are resol ved.

6: 20: 43 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 28, 2017



BARB JEWELL, Chair, Cordova Board of Education, testified in
opposition to SB 96. She voiced concern with all the proposed
changes and the short tine to consider them She concurred with
the previous speakers, especially Superintendents Jones and
Wal sh.

She addressed Sections 5 and 7 related to administration and
managenent. She al so had concerns about Sections 10 and 11. She
said the nunbers for school size and square footage in Cordova
are not correct. School spaces are already being shared wth
busi nesses, non-profits, and other organizations. She provided
exanpl es. She asked them to not use the incorrect nunbers. She
cautioned the conmttee to carefully consider the cuts.

6: 23: 46 PM

PETE HOEPFNER, Menber, Cordova Board of Education, President,
Al aska Associ ation of School Boards, testified in opposition to
SB 96. He said he is concerned about the |ateness of the bil
and that it contains many problens. He said he will focus on the
funding issues, which is a substantial change to a well-
established school finance nethodology and |acks input from
st akehol ders. It wll drastically cut Cordova's staff. He took
issue with the 5 percent proposed cuts to their district, which
is $68 mllion. Only 20 of Alaska's districts are being cut. In
addition, there is a proposed reduction of $1.4 mllion to
Cordova. That is a 37 percent reduction in state funding for
Cordova, the highest cut of any district in the state, and
Cordova has only .255 percent of the students in Alaska. He
asked where the equity is. He spoke of unintended consequences
of the bill.

He said he wshed to address the defunding of the Al aska
Educati on Chal | enge.

CHAI R HUGHES said that is not related to SB 96

MR. HOEPFNER reiterated the question as to why Cordova is being
cut 37 percent in four years.

CHAIR HUGHES said she wll be considering all the coments
t oday.

6: 28: 20 PM

PATRI CK  MAYER, Super i nt endent, W angel | Public School s,
testified in oppositions to Sections 10 and 11 in SB 96. He
provided the history of the Wangell conmunity when it was

thriving and schools were at capacity. Schools were built wth

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2017



expansion in mnd and were approved by the state. He described
the changes in Wangell since then. He said SB 96 proposes a
communi ty-w de issue of major proportion and student disruption.
It disproportionally inpacts sone comunities over others. He
said Wangell Public Schools could lose 32 percent of its
funding over four years. SB 96 is not a solution and is not
fair. He requested nore reaction tinme to address concerns.

6: 30: 14 PM

AMY LUJAN, Executive Director, Al aska Association of School
Business Oficials, testified in opposition to SB 96. She
focused on Section 11 of the bill. She maintained that four
nmonths is not enough tine to address that reduction in funding.
She wondered where the 80 percent and 25 mle figures cane from

She used Nonme as an exanple of a district that would be affected
by Section 11. There are two schools operating below the 80
percent capacity. |If Nome were to nove one group of students
from one school to the other, it would save foundation funding,
but students would not be in the best environnent for their
educational needs, it would cost noney to retrofit the one
school, and there would be no cost savings. She said there are
several other districts where this scenario would apply. She
requested nore tinme to review the bill.

6: 33: 14 PM

CLAY KOPLI N, Mayor of Cordova, testified in opposition to SB 96.
He noted that Cordova has a |large population of young famlies
with future students. He said they have invested heavily in
school progranms, a strategic plan to have a great school system
It attracts professionals and other workers to the conmmunity.
Cutting education cuts deeper than the one line item

6: 34: 08 PM
CHAIR HUGHES closed public testinony on SB 96. She thanked
everyone for their testinony.

CHAI R HUGHES held SB 96 in comm ttee.
6: 35: 07 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair Hughes adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmttee
at 6:35 p.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- March 28, 2017



